
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., February 13, 2024 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, February 06, 2024 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, February 11, 2024 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – January 23, 2024   

                                                                            

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1. Intent of Award ……………………………………………………………………………..         1 - 3 
IFB GHURA-24-001; Section 8 Workstations 

2. Change Order #2 …………………………………………………………………………….        4 - 6 

IFB GHURA-09-26-2019-CDBG; Construction of the Lighthouse  

Recovery Center for Women, Tiyan, Guam 

3. Resolution No. FY2024-007 …………………………………………………………….        7 - 8 

Resolution adopting the November 2023 Public Housing Admissions 

and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) 

4. Resolution No. FY2024-008 …………………………………………………………….       9 - 10 

Resolution amending the Credit Card Policy 

5. Resolution No. FY2024-009 …………………………………………………………….     11 - 32 

Resolution to adopt and enforce the updated Section 3 Policy 

 

V. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1. Project Updates 

2. Division Updates    
      a. Public Housing 
      b. ROSS …………………………………………………………………………………………….      33 - 41 
 

  VI.    GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, March 12, 2024 

@ 12:00 p.m.  

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 







GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of January 23, 2024                                                                             Page 1 of 7 
 

       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., January 23, 2024 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of the 
Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to order at 12:08 
P.M., Tuesday, January 23, 2023, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room. 
Chairman Rivera indicated that 5 of 6 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, 
representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 

 
Viewed 
virtually via 

Zoom: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82375389734?pwd=cO4ZIGexIOfATTTGwZZH5eb3BX3nSg.1 

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 

BOC 
Commissioners 
Attendance 
 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                       Virtual   □            In-Person          
Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman                                  Virtual   □            In-Person     
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner                                  Virtual   □            In-Person   □ 
Anisia Delia, Commissioner                                      Virtual   □           In-Person                 
Emilia Rice, Commissioner                                       Virtual             In-Person   □ 
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner                     Virtual             In-Person   □ 
 
*Chairman Rivera acknowledged and approved the virtual attendance requests. 

GHURA 
Management/ 
Staff  

Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director         Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator □              
Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director          Sonny Perez, AE Manager □  
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant                    Norma San Nicolas   
Frances Danieli, Controller                              Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager □ 
Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner □        Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager □ 
Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator    Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager  
Antonio Camacho, Procurement SMA           Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager □ 
Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager □                         Jolyn Terlaje  
Nicole Alejandro □                                                Miguel Fernandez   □          
Michael Ricuyal   □                                                  
Maria Cherry Canete □ 
 

Legal Counsel Eliseo M. Florig, GHURA’s Legal Counsel  
 

Public None indicated 
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1st Printing – Tuesday, November 14, 2023 

   2nd Printing – Sunday, November 19, 2023     

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82375389734?pwd=cO4ZIGexIOfATTTGwZZH5eb3BX3nSg.1
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag


GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of January 23, 2024                                                                             Page 2 of 7 
 

ACKNOWLEDGED BY CHAIRMAN RIVERA.  
 

III. [216/24] Commissioner Delia moved to approve the board meeting minutes 

of January 9, 2024, subject to corrections. Vice Chairman Sanchez 

seconded the motion. There were no objections. Motion passed. 

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Resolution No. FY2024-006 
GHURA’s Compensation Plan 

[216/24] Executive Director 
Napoli stated the following: 

• GHURA’s compensation 
philosophy is based on 
(3) Rs: 

1. Recruit 
2. Reward  
3. Retain 

• GHURA’s last 
Compensation Plan, 
Resolution No. FY2022-
006 was on 
12/27/2021. 

• At the time, the plan was 
still below the 
Competitive Wage Act of 
2014. 

• The BOC mandated that 
the plan be revised 
sooner than three years 
from the approval date.  

• With the passing of the 
Competitive Wage Act 
Update of 2023, which 
gave 22% pay 
adjustments to 
government employees 
under the General Pay 
Plan, GHURA’s 
Compensation 
Committee worked 
diligently to close the 
gap. 

• This compensation plan 
is focused on rank and 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of January 23, 2024                                                                             Page 3 of 7 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

file utilizing 
comparables against the 
national average 

• GHURA must ensure 
that compensation 
remains competitive to 
follow the (3) Rs: 
Recruit, Reward, and 
Retain the valuable 
workforce needed to 
meet GHURA’s mission. 

Chairman Rivera requested that 
Dr. Kim Bersamin, HR 
Administrator, provide additional 
information on the GHURA 
Compenstion Plan. 

Dr. Kim Bersamin stated: 

• Commissioner Ishizaki and 
former Vice Chairwoman 
Okada requested that the 
Compensation Plan be 
updated. 

• The committee used a 
different set of data than 
that of DOA 

• She deferred to Deputy 
Director Esteves for 
additional comments. 

Deputy Director Esteves stated: 

• The main focus of wage 
consideration using 
management principles is a 
focus on the rank and file 
and understanding where 
GHURA was falling short.  

• GHURA needed to make 
sure that it stayed 
competitive. 

• GCP encompassed about 
(89) positions of the (121) 
currently hired 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of January 23, 2024                                                                             Page 4 of 7 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

• (59) out of (89) positions 
will be within the 15th-45th 
percentile nationally for 
their respective 
occupations. 

• GHURA wants to encourage 
upward mobility 

• This recommended plan 
will put 16 employees in the 
50th percentile, which is at 
the national average.  

• Transitional slotting 
provides: 

1. An immediate 
incentive that makes 
GHURA more 
competitive. 

2. It increases the 
power of the 2% 
increase. 

3. It moves the starting 
salary. 

4. It accounts for Rank 
and file and the 
newly hired 
employees.  

Chairman Rivera asked that 
Deputy Director Esteves touch on 
instances where employees were 
unhappy. Deputy Director Esteves 
indicated that an individual getting 
a 5% increase versus a 15% 
increase would initially be 
shocked. However, the overall cash 
flow had to be taken into 
consideration to determine 
GHURA’s sustainability. He added 
that GHURA had to be reasonable 
and competitive.  

Chairman Rivera asked what steps 
GHURA will take and what the 
timeline would be moving forward. 
Deputy Director Esteves stated 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of January 23, 2024                                                                             Page 5 of 7 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

that a re-evaluation of the plan, 
especially for those in the mid-
level range, Tier-two. He added 
that because GHURA is continuing 
to monitor the national averages, it 
will allow GHURA to keep up to 
date. There should be a steady 
increase to pay based on longevity 
and not to the point that it exceeds 
the Hay Methodology on what the 
pay range is going to be. Deputy 
Director Esteves continued that a 
calculator was built to measure 
funds that are eligible and measure 
funds that can go to salaries by 
division/grants. He added that 
GHURA would like the 
compensation plan to account for 
far enough into the future of 
GHURA.  

Director Napoli added that the new 
Pay Schedule will help GHURA to 
sustain the salaries for the 
different tiers moving forward.  

Chairman Rivera indicated that 
after the two-year mark he would 
like the committee to revisit the 
pay schedule. At the two-and-a-
half-year mark, he requested that 
the committee compile a report to 
the board for review. This timeline 
should give the committee and the 
board time to consider all 
variables. He also requested that 
the committee field any questions 
that the GHURA staff may have.  

Director Napoli stated that the 
committee is scheduling a time to 
meet with employees to answer 
any questions or express any 
concerns.  

There were no further discussions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of January 23, 2024                                                                             Page 6 of 7 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Director Napoli read aloud 
Resolution No. FY2024-006. 

 

 

[217/24] 

Commissioner Delia 

motioned to pass 

Resolution No. 

FY2024-006 

approving the 2024 

GHURA Compensation 

Plan, as amended. 

Commissioner Corpus 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. The motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

 

V. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Project Updates 
2. Division Updates 

 

None reported 

None reported 

 

 

 

 

No Action taken 

 

VI. GENERAL DISCUSSIONS / ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Next proposed scheduled 
Board meeting: Tuesday, 
February 13, 2024 @12PM 

Chairman Rivera requested that 
commissioners mark their 
calendars.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

No Action taken 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of January 23, 2024                                                                             Page 7 of 7 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

  [218/24] Vice 

Chairman Sanchez 

moved to adjourn 

the GHURA BOC 

meeting of January 

23, 2024. 

Commissioner Rice 

seconded the 

motion. There were 

no objections. 

Meeting was 

adjourned at 

12:51PM.  

 

 
SEAL 
 
              ______________________________ 
        Elizabeth F. Napoli 
        Board Secretary/Executive Director 
   
        Date __________________________ 

    



 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 1 of 41



 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 2 of 41



 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 3 of 41



 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 4 of 41



 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 5 of 41



 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 6 of 41



 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 7 of 41



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  

ATURIDAT GINIMA' YAN RINUEBAN SUIDAT GUAHAN 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

RESOLUTION NO.   FY2024-007 

 

 
 

Moved by:      Seconded by: 

 

 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE NOVEMBER 2023 PUBLIC HOUSING ADMISSIONS AND 

CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY (ACOP)  
 
 

WHEREAS,  24 CFR 906 requires all Public Housing Agencies with a Public Housing Program to adopt a 
written Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) that establishes local policies 

for the administration of the Public Housing Program in accordance with requirements 
prescribed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and 

 

WHEREAS,  the Public Housing Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) is the supporting 

documentation to the PHA Annual Plan in accordance with 24 CFR 903;  

 

WHEREAS,  From December 18, 2023, through February 2, 2024, GHURA issued a Notice for Public 

Comment and Public Hearing regarding the updates in the November 2023 ACOP; and 
 
WHEREAS, On February 2, 2024, a Public Hearing was held in which GHURA received a couple of 

comments from the public; and  
 
WHEREAS, GHURA has revised the 2023 Public Housing Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

(ACOP) to the November 2023 ACOP which includes updated current mandates, regulations 
and policies that directly impact the current administration of the Public Housing Program; and 
now, therefore be it 

 

RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners hereby adopts the November 2023 Public Housing Admissions 

and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) for the Public Housing Program. 

 
 

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – FEBRUARY 13, 2024 

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 

AYES:  

NAYES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAINED:  
 
 
(S E A L) I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct 

copy of the Resolution duly adopted by the Guam Housing 
and Urban Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners on 
February 13, 2024. 

 

        

ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

Board Secretary / Executive Director 

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 8 of 41



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

      Aturidat Ginima Van Rinueban Siudat Guahan 

                 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                 RESOLUTION NO. FY2024-008 

 

Moved by:    Seconded by:    

RESOLUTION APPROVING the “2024 GHURA CREDIT CARD POLICY” 
 
WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority 

(“GHURA”) is granted by 12 Guam Code Annotated §5103 and §5104 the powers, 
rights, privileges, functions, and duties of the Authority enacted through policies, 
providing for the internal organization and management of the Authority, and for the 
administration of its affairs and operations; and 

 
           WHEREAS, GHURA is considered a Non-Federal Entity (“NFE”) whose operations are 

funded through Federal grants and programs subject to conditions outlined in 
Federal law, regulations, and rulings; and 

 
WHEREAS, 2 CFR 200, the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 

Audit Requirements for Federal Awards hereafter known as the (“Uniformed 
Guidance”), provides GHURA the basis for its procurement activities; and 

 
WHEREAS,    on April 14, 2015, the Board of Commissioners approved Resolution FY2015-014   

adopting and approving an amendment to GHURA’s Credit Card Policies and 
Procedures; and 

 
WHEREAS,      on April 28, 2015, the Board of Commissioners approved FY2015-014(a) adopting and            

approving further amendments to GHURA’s Credit Card Policies and Procedures; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognize that many monetary transactions have shifted 

and require the use of a credit card; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners further recognize the necessity to update 
GHURA’s Credit Card Policy; now, therefore, be it 

 
  RESOLVED,  Authorized Credit Card Use shall be defined as an ordinary, necessary and  

reasonable expense to properly maintain and operate the Public Housing Authority, 
which may include, but are not limited to, authorized training, authorized travel 

expenses, supplies, services, equipment, and the emergency housing of residents; 
and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, Authorized Credit Card Use funded through Federal grants and/or programs shall 
conform to requirements and cost principles required under 2 CFR 200, GHURA’s 

Procurement Policy, applicable local laws, and regulations; and that it be further  
 

RESOLVED, that an internal audit on GHURA’s credit card utilization shall be conducted on a 

biennial basis as of the effective date of this policy and a report consisting of findings 
and recommendations shall be provided to the Board of Commissioners within ninety 

days of the audit conclusion; and be it further  

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 9 of 41



 
RESOLVED, that the GHURA Board of Commissioners hereby rescinds Credit Card Policies 

adopted in Resolution FY2015-014 and amended through Resolution FY2015-014(a) 
and that any preceding Credit Card Policies, not otherwise rescinded herein, shall be 

replaced with this policy, hereinafter known as the (“2024 GHURA Credit Card 
Policy”); and be it further  

 
RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners approves the “2024 GHURA Credit Card Policy”; and 

that it be further 
 

RESOLVED, that the “2024 GHURA Credit Card Policy” shall be effective upon promulgation, 
approval, and publication of Standard Operating Procedures as defined in Public Law 
34-05, by the Executive Director, consistent with the policies set forth herein, that shall 
be updated periodically to address audit findings, recommendations, and to institute 
best practices.  

 
 

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM -FEBRUARY 13, 2024 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

 
                (S E A L) I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 

correct copy of the Resolution duly adopted by the 
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board 
of Commissioners on February 13, 2024. 

 
 

        
         ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 
         Board Secretary / Executive Director 

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 10 of 41



   Requirements for Compliance with Requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development 

Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u) (Section 3) Provisions of 24CFR 75 
 
 

Overview of Section 3 Requirements 
Section 3 is a provision of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u) that is regulated by the 
provisions of 24 CFR 75. Section 3 regulations ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by 
certain HUD financial assistance shall, to the greatest extent feasible, and consistent with existing Federal, State and local 
laws and regulations, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who are recipients of government 
assistance for housing, and to business concerns which provide economic opportunities to low- and very low- income 
persons. 

 
General Policy Statement: 
It is the declared policy of GHURA that Equal Employment Opportunities shall be provided for every employee and 
applicant for employment regardless of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, handicap, or economic status; and, that 
through the award of contracts to contractors, vendors, and suppliers, that employment and business opportunities be 
created for residents of GHURA properties and other qualified low- and very low-income persons residing on the island 
of Guam. This policy does not end with the mere prohibition of discriminatory practices by programs receiving HUD 
financial assistance or contractors, subcontractors, and vendors contracting with GHURA. GHURA recognizes its 
obligation as well as the obligation of potential contractors, subcontractors, and vendors, to develop practical steps to 
achieve the goal of providing meaningful, full-time permanent employment opportunities, as well as business 
opportunities to GHURA Residents and other Section 3 eligible persons. 

 

 
Eligibility: 
Individuals and businesses that meet Section 3 criteria may seek Section 3 preference from GHURA. Targeted Section 3 
worker or a Section 3 business concern, each must self-certify that they meet the applicable criteria. 

 

Businesses who misrepresent themselves as Section 3 business concerns and report false information to GHURA may 
have their contracts terminated as default and be barred from ongoing and future considerations for contracting 
opportunities. 

 
Applicability: 
For public housing financial assistance, all funding is covered, regardless of the amount of expenditure or size of a 
contract. This plan applies to development assistance, operating funds, capital funds, and all mixed-finance development. 
For housing and community development financial assistance, this plan applies to housing rehabilitation, housing 
construction, and other public construction projects that exceed $200,000 or more of housing and community development 
financial assistance from one or more HUD programs. Applicability is determined at the project level. 

 
For projects funded with Lead and Hazard Control and Healthy Homes Programs, this plan applies to projects that exceed 
$100,000. 

 
This plan also applies to projects that include multiple funding sources. Multiple funding source projects include projects 
that include public housing financial assistance, housing and community development financial assistance for single or 
multiple recipients, and the Lead Hazard Control and Healthy Homes Program. 
Section 3 requirements do not apply to: 1) Material Supply Contracts - § 75.3(b), 2) Indian and Tribal Preferences - § 
75.3(c), and 3) Other HUD assistance and other Federal assistance not subject to Section 3 §75.3 (d). However, for 
financial assistance that is not subject to Section 3, recipients are encouraged to consider ways to support the purpose of 
Section 3. 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 11 of 41



Purpose of this Policy and Compliance Plan: 
The purposes of this Policy are to create sustained employment and other opportunities for Section 3 Beneficiaries and to 
assist Contractors in understanding their Section 3 obligations so that they can be successful in meeting the responsibilities 
of the Section 3 requirements. These purposes are accomplished through the guidance provided by GHURA and 
assistance provided by GHURA’s Section 3 coordinator. This policy shall remain in effect for so long as it remains 
consistent with federal regulations or amended by GHURA’s Board of Commissioners. 

 

Numerical Goals for Section 3 Compliance: 
Recipients and Contractors may demonstrate compliance with the requirement of Section 3 by meeting the numerical goals 
set forth in this Section 3 Program for providing training, employment, and contracting opportunities to Section 3 Residents 
and Section Business Concerns. Efforts to employ Section 3 Residents to the greatest extent feasible should be made at all 
job levels. 

 
 

GHURA, in its own operations, shall endeavor to achieve the goals of Section 3 and shall provide equal responsibility to 

its contractors, vendors, and suppliers to implement progressive efforts to also attain compliance. In doing so, GHURA 

shall evaluate contractors’ compliance towards achieving the goals of Section 3. 
 
 

Section 3 Final Rule Benchmark Notice: 
 

 25% of all labor hours must be performed by a Section 3 worker. 

 5% of all labor hours must be performed by Targeted Section 3 workers 
 

The numerical goals established above represent minimum numerical targets and all prospective contractors shall be 

advised and encouraged to seek Section 3 participation to the greatest extent feasible. Any contractor that meets the 

minimum numerical goals set forth above will be considered to have complied with the Section 3 requirements. Any 

contractor that does not meet the numerical goals set forth above has the burden of demonstrating why it was not feasible 

to meet the numerical goals. In the event no competing contractors were successful in meeting the minimum goals set 

forth above, GHURA shall consider documentation provided by the contractor evidencing impediments encountered 

despite actions taken to comply with the Section 3 Requirements. Such evidence shall be subject to the satisfaction of 

GHURA. Any contractor found to be in non-compliance with GHURA Section 3 shall be considered ineligible for award  
 

All contractors submitting bids/proposals to the GHURA shall be required to complete certifications, as acknowledgment 

of the Section 3 contracting and employment provisions as required by this section. Such certifications shall be supported 

with adequate evidence to support representations made. The certifications required to be submitted with the bid/proposal 

consist of the following: 
 

ꞏ Certification for business concerns seeking Section 3 preference. 
ꞏ Contractor certification of efforts to fully comply with employment and training provisions of Section 3. 

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 12 of 41



 

 
All Workers 

 

 
 
 

All Section 3 Workers 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Targeted Section 3 
Workers 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 3 Worker and Targeted Section 3 Worker: 
A Section 3 worker seeking certification shall submit self-certification documentation to the recipient contractor or 
subcontractor, that the person is a Section 3 worker or Targeted Section 3 worker as defined in 24 CFR Part 75. For the 
purposes of Section 3 worker eligibility, GHURA will use individual income rather than family/household income to 
determine eligibility. 

 

 
Individual Income Limits 

FY2022 
Income Limit Area 

 

Income Limit Category 
 

FY 2023 Income Limits 

 

 
 

GUAM 

Extremely Low-Income Limits 
30% 

 

$17,000 

Very Low-Income Limits 50% $28,300 

Low Income Limits 80% $45,250 

Persons seeking the Section 3 worker preference shall demonstrate that it meets one or more of the following criteria 
currently or when hired within the past five years, as documented: 

 
1) A low or very low-income resident (the worker’s income for the previous or annualized calendar year is below 

the income limit established by HUD); or 
 

2) Employed by a Section 3 business concern; or 
 

3) A YouthBuild participant. 
 

Persons seeking the Targeted Section 3 worker preference shall demonstrate that it meets one or more of the following 
criteria: 

 
(For public housing financial assistance) 

 
1) Employed by a Section 3 business concern or 

 
2) Currently meets or when hired met at least one of the following categories as documented within the past five 
years: a) A resident of public housing; or 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 13 of 41



b) A resident of other public housing projects or Section 8-assisted housing; or 

c) A YouthBuild participant. 

(For housing and community development assistance) 

 
1) Employed by a Section 3 business concern or 

 
2) Currently meets or when hired met at least one of the following categories as documented within the past five 

years: a) Living within the service area or the neighborhood of the project, as defined in 24 CFR Part 75.5; or b) A 

YouthBuild participant. 
 

Section 3 workers and Targeted Section 3 workers who are seeking preference in training and employment must submit 
the Section 3 Worker and Targeted Section 3 Worker Certification Form from the GHURA office.  Example of the 
Section 3 Worker and Targeted Section Worker form is as follows.   
 
Please check on the link below for each of the Self-Certifications Forms:  

 

a. HUD Form 4736 - Section 3 PH Certification Form 

b. HUD Form 4736A-Section3 Worker Employer Certification Form - HCD 

c. HUD Form 4736B-Section3 Worker Employer Certification Form- PH 

d.  HUD Form 4736C- Section3 Worker Self-Certification Form - HCD 

e.  HUD Form 4736D-Section3 Worker Self Certification Form - PH 
 

 
Section 3 Program Participant Certification Procedure: 

GHURA will certify Section 3 program participants who reside in GUAM or near the project site and who are seeking 

preference in training and employment by completing and attaching adequate proof of Section 3 eligibility. 

 
1.   All persons living in GUAM or within the required radius of the project site who meet the Section 3 eligibility 

guidelines. 

2.   Once this assessment is complete, the Section 3 Coordinator will determine if the individual needs the eligibility 

requirements and is job ready. 

3.   If the individual is deemed eligible for Section 3 participation and deemed not ready for employment, a referral 

will be made to other agencies that are better equipped to address the individual’s needs, i.e., substance abuse 

providers, etc. 

4.   The Section 3 readiness component is a part of GHURA’s commitment to provide economic opportunities and 

training to residents/eligible participants to become gainfully employed. 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 14 of 41

file://///ghura8/admin2/ADMIN%20SUPPORT/SCAN2/BOARD%20OF%20COMMISSIONERS/BOC%20-%20BOC%20MTG/FY2024/7.%20February%2013,%202024%20BOC%20Mtg/Hud%20Form%204736%20-%20Section%203%20PH%20Certification%20Form
file://///ghura8/admin2/ADMIN%20SUPPORT/SCAN2/BOARD%20OF%20COMMISSIONERS/BOC%20-%20BOC%20MTG/FY2024/7.%20February%2013,%202024%20BOC%20Mtg/HUDForm%204736A-Section3%20Worker%20Employer%20Certification%20Form%20-%20HCD
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/FPM/documents/HUD%20Form%204736B-Section3%20Worker%20Employer%20Certification%20Form-%20PH
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfilesHU%20DForm%204736C-%20Section3%20Worker%20Self-Certification%20Form-HCD
file://///ghura8/admin2/ADMIN%20SUPPORT/SCAN2/BOARD%20OF%20COMMISSIONERS/BOC%20-%20BOC%20MTG/FY2024/7.%20February%2013,%202024%20BOC%20Mtg/HUD%20Form%204736D-Section3%20Worker%20Self%20Certification%20Form%20-%20PH


Section 3 Business Concern Certification: 

Businesses that believe they meet the Section 3 Business requirements can may self-register in the HUD Business 

registry, here: http://www.hud.gov/sec3biz. Businesses may seek Section 3 Business Concern preference by 

demonstrating that it meets one or more of the following criteria: 

 
1) At least 51 percent of the business is owned and controlled by low- or very low-income persons; or 

 

2) At least 51 percent of the business is owned and controlled by current public housing residents or residents who 

currently live in Section 8-assisted housing; or 

3) Over 75 percent of the labor hours performed for the business over the prior three-month period are performed 

by Section 3 workers. 

 
Businesses that seek Section 3 preference shall certify, or demonstrate to GHURA contractors or subcontractors, that they 

meet the definitions provided in the above. Businesses may demonstrate eligibility by submitting the Section 3 Business 

Concern Certification Form, located at the GHURA office. 

 
Section 3 Business Concern Certification Forms must be submitted at the time of bid/proposal. If GHURA previously 
approved the business concern to be Section 3 certified, then the certification can be submitted along with the bid, as long 
as the form is submitted within the prescribed expiration date. The Section 3 Business Concern Certification Form will 
expire after 12 months. Establishing a 12-month certification of eligibility period allows GHURA the ability to assess 
contractor performance to ensure the business is striving to meet the required goals. 

 

Note: While registering as a Section 3 Business Concern may give a business certain preference, such registration is not a 
guarantee of such preferences that the business will be awarded any contractors or subcontracts by GHURA or its 
contractors/vendors. 

 

 
Example of a Certification for Business Concerns Seeking Section 3 Preference form is located below: 

 

 
 

 

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 15 of 41

http://www.hud.gov/sec3biz.


Section 3 Recruitment and New hires: 

Contractors are expected to make best efforts to achieve the benchmarks and Section 3 Worker priorities outlined in this 

Policy and at 24 CFR Part 75. This section provides guidance for the recruitment of New Hires who are Section 3 

Workers and Targeted Section 3 Workers to assist Contractors in meeting their benchmarks and obligations. 
 

A.  Recruitment Efforts: 

1.   Contractors/Subcontractors are to advertise Job Announcements within the project site area. 

2.   Independent of GHURA’s efforts and referrals, Contractors shall engage in independent employment 

recruitment efforts and follow the Section 3 Worker and Targeted Section 3 Worker order in of hiring priority 

as identified in this policy. 

5.   Contractors shall submit to GHURA the status reports of this Recruitment efforts.   

 
B.  Section 3 Worker and Targeted Section 3 Worker New Hires: 

1.   All Section 3 Worker and Targeted Section 3 Worker New Hires shall be employees of the Contractor and 

shall have all the protections afforded to employees under state, federal and local laws. Contractors are 

expected to impose the same hiring requirements and personnel rules and policies upon Section 3 Worker 

New Hires as are imposed upon their other employment candidates and employees. GHURA expects and 

requires Contractors to abide by equal pay for equal work principles. 

2.   Contractors are required to report to GHURA within five (5) business days of hiring Section 3 Workers and 

Targeted Section 3 Workers and shall provide to GHURA a completed Section 3 Worker and Targeted 

Section 3 Worker form. 

 
C.  Apprenticeship Programs: 

1.   Contractors who employ apprentices are required to utilize apprenticeship programs approved by the United  

       States Department of Labor. 

2.   Contractors who employ apprentices on construction projects that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Wage Act 

are required to adhere to all legal requirements for wage rates and ratios of apprentices to journeymen set 

forth. 

 
D.  Limitations: 

Contractors retain the sole discretion and control over any hiring and personnel decisions. GHURA cannot and 

will not exercise any control over any of the Contractor’s employees, including New Hires, regardless of whether 

they were referred by GHURA or are Section 3 Workers/Targeted Section 3 Workers recruited through other 

means. 
 

Safe Harbor Compliance: 25% of total hours or 5% of hours contracted to targeted workers: 

It is the responsibility of contractors to implement efforts to achieve Section 3 compliance. Any contractor that does not 

meet the Section 3 benchmarks must demonstrate why meeting the benchmarks were not feasible. All contractors 

submitting bids or proposals to GHURA are required to certify that they will comply with the requirements of Section 3. 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 16 of 41



Good Faith and Qualitative Efforts: 

Qualitative efforts to satisfy its benchmark goals, which may include, but are not limited to the following: 
 

1. Engaging in outreach efforts to generate job applicants who are Targeted Section 3 Workers, including 

notifying GHURA’s Section 3 Coordinator, posting job openings at the job site, HUD Opportunity Portal, social 

media pages, contacting Resident Advisory Councils, and other platforms; 
 

2. Contacting agencies administering Department of Labor YouthBuild Programs, and requesting their assistance 

in recruiting Department of Labor YouthBuild Program participants for training opportunities and employment 

positions; (Not Applicable in Guam at this time) 
 

3. Consulting with state and local agencies administering training programs, such as those funded through 

Workforce Investment Act, unemployment compensation programs, community organizations and other officials 

or organizations to assist with training and recruiting Section 3 Workers and Targeted Section 3 Workers; 
 

4. Holding job fairs; 
 

5. Providing or connecting Section 3 Workers and Targeted Section 3 Workers with assistance in seeking 

employment, including: drafting resumes, preparing for interviews, and finding job opportunities connecting 

residents to job placement services; 
 

6. Providing or referring Section 3 Workers to services supporting work readiness and retention (e.g., work 

readiness activities, interview clothing, test fees, transportation, child care); 
 

7. Assisting Section 3 Workers to obtain financial literacy training and/or coaching; 
 

8. Engaging in outreach efforts to identify and secure bids from Section 3 Business Concerns. 
 

9. Providing technical assistance to help Section 3 Business Concerns understand and bid on contracts; 
 

10. Dividing contracts into smaller jobs to facilitate participation by Section 3 Business Concerns; 
 

11. Providing bonding assistance, guaranties, or other efforts to support viable bids from Section 3 Business 

Concerns; 
 

12. Promoting use of Section 3 Business Registries designed to create opportunities for Section 3, disadvantaged 

and small businesses 
 
 

Documented Efforts: 

Contractors shall document efforts taken to recruit and interview Section 3 Workers/Targeted Section 3 Workers for hire 

and shall, upon reasonable request, provide GHURA with documentation that demonstrates such efforts, including 

interview notes, which shall include reasons for denial of employment or other actions as applicable. 

 
Lack of Compliance: 

A Contractor’s failure to satisfy the requirements of this section may result in GHURA’s determination that the Contractor 

has failed to demonstrate good faith and qualitative efforts to comply with the requirements of Section 3 and this Policy, 

and may subject Contractor to the penalties for default. 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 17 of 41



Reporting Requirements: 

For Section 3 covered contracts, contractors must submit the Section 3 Performance and Summary Report to GHURA’s 

Section 3 Coordinator on a periodic basis, and the annual reporting requirement set forth in these HUD forms:   

 

a. HUD form 4737    ➔ Section 3 Utilization Tracker: Business Labor Hours 

b. HUD Form 4737A ➔ Section 3 Utilization Tracker: Section 3 Labor Hours 
 

Notes: 

i) Once a project is completed, contractors must submit a final Section 3 cumulative report. 

ii)  Upon the completion of a project, GHURA’s Section 3 Coordinator will conduct a final review of the 

project’s overall performance and compliance. 

iii)  GHURA’s Section 3 Coordinator will submit the Section 3 data into required reporting system to HUD at the 

respective reporting period. 
 
 

Internal Section 3 Complaint Procedure: 

In an effort to resolve complaints generated due to non-compliance through an internal process, GHURA encourages 

submittal of such complaints to its Section 3 Coordinator as follows: 
 

1) Complaints of non-compliance should be filed in writing and must contain the name of the complainant and brief 

description of the alleged violation of 24 CFR Part 75. 
 

2) Complaints must be filed within 14 calendar days after the complainant becomes aware of the alleged violation. 
 

3) An investigation will be conducted if complaint is found to be valid. GHURA will conduct an informal, but thorough 

investigation affording all interested parties, if any, an opportunity to submit testimony and/or evidence pertinent to the 

complaint. 
 

4) GHURA will provide written documentation detailing the findings of the investigation. GHURA will review the 

findings for accuracy and completeness before it is released to complainants. The findings will be made available no later 

than 30 days after the filing of complaint. If complainants wish to have their concerns considered outside of GHURA a 

complaint may be filed with: 

 
The HUD program office responsible for the public housing financial assistance or the Section 3 project, or to the local 

HUD field office. These offices can be found through the HUD website, www.hud.gov/. 
 

 
 

Expiration: 

GHURA may amend its Section 3 Policies and Procedures document as necessary to ensure continued compliance with 

HUD’s requirements and/or to reflect updated Section 3 guidance and outreach strategies. 

This plan expires: December 2025. 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 18 of 41

file://///ghura8/admin2/ADMIN%20SUPPORT/SCAN2/BOARD%20OF%20COMMISSIONERS/BOC%20-%20BOC%20MTG/FY2024/7.%20February%2013,%202024%20BOC%20Mtg/Section%203%20Utilization%20Tracker:%20Business%20Labor%20Hours
file://///ghura8/admin2/ADMIN%20SUPPORT/SCAN2/BOARD%20OF%20COMMISSIONERS/BOC%20-%20BOC%20MTG/FY2024/7.%20February%2013,%202024%20BOC%20Mtg/Section%203%20Utilization%20Tracker:%20Section%203%20Labor%20Hours
http://www.hud.gov/


Appendices A: Definitions 
 

The terms HUD, Public housing, and Public Housing Agency (PHA) are defined in 24 CFR part 5. 

 
The following definitions also apply to 24 CFR Part 75 HUD’s Economic Opportunities for Low-and Very Low-Income 

Persons: 

 
1937 Act means the United States Housing Act of 1937, 42 U.S.C. 1437 et seq. activities related to Public Housing 

 
Contractor means any entity entering into a contract with: 

 
(1) A recipient to perform work in connection with the expenditure of public housing financial assistance or for work 

in connection with a Section 3 project; or 
(2) A sub recipient for work in connection with a Section 3 project. 

 
Labor hours means the number of paid hours worked by persons on a Section 3 project or by persons employed with 

funds that include public housing financial assistance. 

 
Low-income person means a person as defined in Section 3(b)(2) of the 1937 Act, at or below 80% AMI. Note that 

Section 3 worker eligibility uses individual income rather than family/household income. 

 
Material supply contracts means contracts for the purchase of products and materials, including, but not limited to, 

lumber, drywall, wiring, concrete, pipes, toilets, sinks, carpets, and office supplies. 

 
Professional services mean non-construction services that require an advanced degree or professional licensing, 

including, but not limited to, contracts for legal services, financial consulting, accounting services, environmental 

assessment, architectural services, and civil engineering services. 

 
Public housing financial assistance means assistance as defined in 24 CFR Part 75.3(a)(1). 

 
Public housing project is defined in 24 CFR 905.108. 

 
Recipient means any entity that receives directly from HUD public housing financial assistance or housing and 

community development assistance that funds Section 3 projects, including, but not limited to, any State, local 

government, instrumentality, PHA, or other public agency, public or private nonprofit organization. 
 

 
 

Section 3 means Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 U.S.C. 1701u). 

Section 3 business concern means: 

(1) A business concern meeting at least one of the following criteria, documented within the last six-month period: 

(i) It is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by low- or very low-income persons; 

(ii) Over 75 percent of the labor hours performed for the business over the prior three-month period are 
performed by Section 3 workers; or 

(iii)  It is a business at least 51 percent owned and controlled by current public housing residents or residents who 

currently live in Section 8-assisted housing. 

 
(2) The status of a Section 3 business concern shall not be negatively affected by a prior arrest or conviction of its 

owner(s) or employees. 

 
(3) Nothing in this part shall be construed to require the contracting or subcontracting of a Section 3 business concern. 

Section 3 business concerns are not exempt from meeting the specifications of the contract. 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 19 of 41



Section 8-assisted housing refers to housing receiving project-based rental assistance or tenant-based assistance under 

Section 8 of the 1937 Act. 

 
Service area or the neighborhood of the project means an area within one mile of the Section 3 project or, if fewer than 

5,000 people live within one mile of a Section 3 project, within a circle centered on the Section 3 project that is sufficient 

to encompass a population of 5,000 people according to the most recent U.S. Census. 

 
Subcontractor means any entity that has a contract with a contractor to undertake a portion of the contractor's obligation 

to perform work in connection with the expenditure of public housing financial assistance or for a Section 3 project. 

 
Subrecipient has the meaning provided in the applicable program regulations or in 2 CFR 200.93. 

Targeted Section 3 worker has the meanings provided in 24 CFR Part 75.11, 75.21, or 75.29, and does not exclude an 

individual that has a prior arrest or conviction. 

 
Very low-income person means the definition for this term set forth in section 3(b) (2) of the 1937 Act (at or below 50% 

AMI) 

 
YouthBuild programs refers to YouthBuild programs receiving assistance under the Workforce Innovation and 

Opportunity Act (29 U.S.C. 3226). 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 20 of 41



 

 

 

Section 3 Housing and 

Community Development 

Employer Certification Form 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

Office of Field Policy and Management 

HUD FORM 4736A 
OMB Approval Number 2501-0041 

(Exp. 04/30/2025) 

(In compliance with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 75) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Public reporting for this collection of information is estimated to average 0.5 hours per response, including the time for 

reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering, and maintaining the data needed, and completing and 

reviewing the collection of information.  

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended by the Housing and Community Development 

Act of 1992 (Section 3), and 12 U.S.C. § 1701u ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by 

Federal financial assistance for housing and community development programs are, to the greatest extent feasible, 

directed toward low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who receive government assistance for housing. 

The regulations are found at 24 CFR Part 75. This collection of information is required in order to ensure that a worker 

can be certified as an eligible Section 3 worker as outlined in 24 C.F.R. § 75.31. The in-formation will be used by the 

Department to ensure compliance with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 employer certification requirements listed in 24 

CFR § 75.31, to assess the results of the Department's efforts to meet the statutory objectives of Section 3, to prepare 

reports to Congress, and by recipients to ensure they are complying with their recordkeeping requirements found in the 

regulation, and as a self-monitoring tool.  

Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions 

to reduce this burden, to Anna P. Guido, Reports Management Officer, QDAM, Department of Housing and Urban 

Development, 451 7th Street, SW, Room 4176, Washington, DC 20410-5000.  When providing comments, please refer to 

OMB Approval No. 2501-0041.  HUD may not conduct and sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a 

collection of information unless the collection displays a valid control number. No assurances of confidentiality are 

provided for this information collection.  

The purpose of this form is to comply with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 employer certification 

requirements listed in 24 CFR § 75.31. To qualify as a Section 3 worker, the United States legal resident’s  

annual income must not exceed the HUD income limits for the year before the worker was hired, or the 

individual’s current income annualized on a full-time basis for the year must be below the HUD income limit. 

Additionally, an individual can qualify as a Section 3 worker and Targeted Section 3 worker, if an employee of 

a Section 3 Business Concern. To qualify as a Targeted Section 3 worker, an employer can confirm that the 

employee lives within the service area or neighborhood of the project.  

 

Please provide the following information about the business/employer: 
 

 

Name of Business: __________________________________________________________________________________ 

           

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Street Address                           City                            State                    Zip   

 

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 21 of 41



 

Phone #:  ________________________ Email: _________________________________________________ 

 

 

   

 

 

 

Please Provide the following information about the worker/employee: 

 
 

Printed Name of Worker:                

  

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Street Address (Not a PO Box)                         Apt#               City                            State                    Zip   

 

 

Phone #:       Email:           

 

 

 

Please indicate which of the following is true for the worker listed above: (Select all that apply) 

____ Worker’s income from your employment is below the income limit based 

on a calculation of what the worker’s wage rate would translate to if annualized 

on a full-time basis* 

____ Worker is employed by a Section 3 Business Concern (Select if your 

business qualifies as a Section 3 Business Concern) 

____ Worker’s residence is within the service area or neighborhood of the 

project 

Income limit 

$XX,XXX 

 *Currently or at the time of hire if hired within the past 5 years. 

 

 
 

 

 

I/We, the undersigned, certify under penalty of perjury that the information provided above is true and correct 

and certifies that the worker identified above meets the definition of a Section 3 worker. WARNING: Anyone 

who knowingly submits a false claim or makes a false statement is subject to criminal and/or civil penalties, 

including confinement for up to 5 years, fines, and civil and administrative penalties. (18 U.S.C. §§ 287, 1001, 

1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. §3729, 3802) 
 

 

_____________________________________________   ___________________________ 

Signature        Date 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 22 of 41



 

 

 

Section 3 Employer 

Certification Form-Public 

Housing 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development 
Office of Field Policy and Management 

HUD FORM 4736B 
OMB Approval Number 2501-0041 

(Exp. 04/30/2025) 

(In compliance with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 75) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Public reporting for this collection of information is estimated to average 0.5 hours per response, including the time for 

reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering, and maintaining the data needed, and completing and 

reviewing the collection of information.  

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended by the Housing and Community Development 

Act of 1992 (Section 3), and 12 U.S.C. § 1701u ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by 

Federal financial assistance for housing and community development programs are, to the greatest extent feasible, directed 

toward low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who receive government assistance for housing. The 

regulations are found at 24 CFR Part 75. This collection of information is required in order to ensure that a worker can be 

certified as an eligible Section 3 worker as outlined in 24 C.F.R. § 75.31. The information will be used by the Department 

to ensure compliance with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 employer certification requirements listed in 24 CFR § 75.31, 

to assess the results of the Department's efforts to meet the statutory objectives of Section 3, to prepare reports to Congress, 

and by recipients to ensure they are complying with their recordkeeping requirements found in the regulation, and as a self-

monitoring tool.  

Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions 

to reduce this burden, to Anna P. Guido, Reports Management Officer, QDAM, Department of Housing and Urban 

Development, 451 7th Street, SW, Room 4176, Washington, DC 20410-5000.  When providing comments, please refer to 

OMB Approval No. 2501-0041.  HUD may not conduct and sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection 

of information unless the collection displays a valid control number. No assurances of confidentiality are provided for this 

information collection.  

 

The purpose of this form is to comply with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 employer certification 

requirements listed in 24 CFR § 75.31. This form is to be filled out by a representative of an employer of a 

Section 3 worker. 

 

 

Please provide the following information about the business/employer: 
 

 

Name of Business: __________________________________________________________________________________ 

           

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Street Address                           City                            State                    Zip   

 

 

Phone #:  ________________________ Email: _________________________________________________ 

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 23 of 41



 

   

 

 

 

Please provide the following information about the worker/employee: 

 
 

Printed Name of Worker:                

  

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Street Address (Not a PO Box)                         Apt#               City                            State                    Zip   

 

 

Phone #:       Email:           

 

 

 

 

Please indicate which of the following is true for the worker listed above: (Select all that apply) 

____ Worker’s income from your employment is below the income limit based 

on a calculation of what the worker’s wage rate would translate to if annualized 

on a full-time basis* 

____ Worker is employed by a Section 3 Business Concern (Select if your 

business qualifies as a Section 3 Business Concern) 

Income limit 

$XX,XXX 

 *Currently or at the time of hire if hired within the past 5 years 

 
 

 

 

 

I/We, the undersigned, certify under penalty of perjury that the information provided above is true and correct 

and certifies that the worker identified above meets the definition of a Section 3 worker. WARNING: Anyone 

who knowingly submits a false claim or makes a false statement is subject to criminal and/or civil penalties, 

including confinement for up to 5 years, fines, and civil and administrative penalties. (18 U.S.C. §§ 287, 1001, 

1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. §3729, 3802) 
 

 

_____________________________________________   ___________________________ 

Signature        Date 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 24 of 41



 

 

 

 

Section 3 Worker Self-

Certification-Housing and 

Community Development  

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development 
Office of Field Policy and Management 

HUD FORM 4736C 
OMB Approval Number 2501-0041 

(Exp. 04/30/2025) 

(In compliance with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 75) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Public reporting for this collection of information is estimated to average 0.5 hours per response, including the time for 

reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering, and maintaining the data needed, and completing and 

reviewing the collection of information.  

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended by the Housing and Community Development 

Act of 1992 (Section 3), and 12 U.S.C. § 1701u ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by 

Federal financial assistance for housing and community development programs are, to the greatest extent feasible, directed 

toward low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who receive government assistance for housing. The 

regulations are found at 24 CFR Part 75. This collection of information is required in order to ensure that a worker can be 

certified as an eligible Section 3 worker as outlined in 24 C.F.R. § 75.31. The in-formation will be used by the Department 

to ensure compliance with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 employer certification requirements listed in 24 CFR § 75.31, 

to assess the results of the Department's efforts to meet the statutory objectives of Section 3, to prepare reports to Congress, 

and by recipients to ensure they are complying with their recordkeeping requirements found in the regulation, and as a self-

monitoring tool.  

Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions 

to reduce this burden, to Anna P. Guido, Reports Management Officer, QDAM, Department of Housing and Urban 

Development, 451 7th Street, SW, Room 4176, Washington, DC 20410-5000.  When providing comments, please refer to 

OMB Approval No. 2501-0041.  HUD may not conduct and sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection 

of information unless the collection displays a valid control number. No assurances of confidentiality are provided for this 

information collection.  

 

The purpose of this form is to comply with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 employer certification requirements 

listed in 24 CFR § 75.31. To qualify as a Section 3 worker, any United States legal resident’s annual income must 

not exceed the HUD income limits for the year before the worker was hired, or the individual’s current income 

annualized on a full-time basis for the year must be below the HUD income limit. Additionally, an individual can 

qualify as a Section 3 worker if they are a YouthBuild participant or employee of a Section 3 Business concern.  

 

 

Printed Name:                

  

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Street Address (Not a PO Box)                         Apt#               City                            State                    Zip   

 

 

Phone #:       Email:           

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 25 of 41



 

To qualify as a Section 3 Worker, you must meet one of the following requirements OR have your employer 

certify that you are employed by a Section 3 Business concern: 

• Income for the previous calendar year is below the income limit*  

• A participant in a means-tested program such as public housing or Section 

8-assisted housing 

• A YouthBuild Participant* 

Income limit 

$XX,XXX 

 *Currently or at the time of hire if hired within the past 5 years 

 

I meet at least one of the requirements in the box above and therefore qualify to be counted as a Section 3 

Worker under 24 CFR § 75.  

 

 

 

 

If applicable, please indicate which requirement you meet to be considered a Targeted Section 3 worker in the 

box below. If you select “Living within the service area or neighborhood of the project,” that selection will have 

to be confirmed by your employer. If you do not meet any of these requirements or do not know if you meet any 

of the requirements listed below, you may leave this section blank.  

 

 

 

___ Living within the service area or neighborhood of the project (requires employer confirmation)* 

___ YouthBuild participant* 

 

 *Currently or at the time of hire if hired within the past 5 years  

 

 

In addition to qualifying as a Section 3 Worker, I meet at least one of the requirements in the box above 

and therefore qualify to be counted as a Targeted Section 3 Worker under 75 CFR § 75.  

 
 

 

I/We, the undersigned, certify under penalty of perjury that the information provided above is true and correct 

and certifies that the worker identified above meets the definition of a Section 3 worker. WARNING: Anyone 

who knowingly submits a false claim or makes a false statement is subject to criminal and/or civil penalties, 

including confinement for up to 5 years, fines, and civil and administrative penalties. (18 U.S.C. §§ 287, 1001, 

1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. §3729, 3802) 

 

 

 

______________________________________________    ____________________ 

Signature          Date 

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 26 of 41



 

 

 

Section 3 Worker Self-
Certification Form- Public 
Housing 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development 
Office of Field Policy and Management 

HUD FORM 4736D 
OMB Approval Number 2501-0041 

(Exp. 04/30/2025) 

(In compliance with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 75) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Public reporting for this collection of information is estimated to average 0.5 hours per response, including the time for 

reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering, and maintaining the data needed, and completing and 

reviewing the collection of information.  

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended by the Housing and Community Development 

Act of 1992 (Section 3), and 12 U.S.C. § 1701u ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by 

Federal financial assistance for housing and community development programs are, to the greatest extent feasible, directed 

toward low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who receive government assistance for housing. The regula-

tions are found at 24 CFR Part 75. This collection of information is required in order to ensure that a worker can be certified 

as an eligible Section 3 worker as outlined in 24 C.F.R. § 75.31. The in-formation will be used by the Department to ensure 

compliance with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 employer certification requirements listed in 24 CFR § 75.31, to assess 

the results of the Department's efforts to meet the statutory objectives of Section 3, to prepare reports to Congress, and by 

recipients to ensure they are complying with their recordkeeping requirements found in the regulation, and as a self-moni-

toring tool.  

Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions 

to reduce this burden, to Anna P. Guido, Reports Management Officer, QDAM, Department of Housing and Urban Devel-

opment, 451 7th Street, SW, Room 4176, Washington, DC 20410-5000.  When providing comments, please refer to OMB 

Approval No. 2501-0041.  HUD may not conduct and sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of 

information unless the collection displays a valid control number. No assurances of confidentiality are provided for this 

information collection.  

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The purpose of this form is to comply with Section 3 of the HUD Act of 1968 self-certification requirements.  

To qualify as a Section 3 worker, the United States legal resident’s annual income must not exceed the HUD 

income limits for the year before the worker was hired, or, the individual’s current income annualized on a full-

time basis for the year must be below the HUD income limit. Additionally, an individual can qualify as a Sec-

tion 3 worker if they are a YouthBuild participant or employee of a Section 3 Business concern.  

 

 

Printed Name:                

  

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Street Address (Not a PO Box)                         Apt#               City                            State                    Zip   

 

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 27 of 41



Phone #:       Email:           

 

 

To qualify as a Section 3 Worker, you must self-certify that you meet one of the following requirements OR 

have your employer certify that you are employed by a Section 3 Business concern: 

• Income for the previous calendar year is below the income limit*  

• A participant in a means-tested program such as public housing or Section 

8-assisted housing 

• A YouthBuild Participant* 

Income limit 

$XX,XXX 

 *Currently or at the time of hire if hired within the past 5 years 

  

 

I meet at least one of the requirements in the box above and therefore qualify to be counted as a Section 3 

Worker under 24 CFR § 75.  

 

 

 

If applicable, please indicate which requirement listed below you meet to be considered a Targeted Section 3 

worker in the box below. If you do not meet any of these requirements or do not know if you meet any of the 

requirements listed below, you may leave this section blank. 

 

 

 

       ___ A participant in a means-tested program such as public housing or Section 8-assisted housing 

 

___ A YouthBuild participant* 

 

 *Currently or at the time of hire if hired within the past 5 years 

 

 

In addition to qualifying as a Section 3 Worker, I meet at least one of the requirements in the box above 

and therefore qualify to be counted as a Targeted Section 3 Worker under 75 CFR § 75.  

 

 

 

I/We, the undersigned, certify under penalty of perjury that the information provided above is true and correct 

and certifies that the worker identified above meets the definition of a Section 3 worker. WARNING: Anyone 

who knowingly submits a false claim or makes a false statement is subject to criminal and/or civil penalties, 

including confinement for up to 5 years, fines, and civil and administrative penalties. (18 U.S.C. §§ 287, 1001, 

1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. §3729, 3802) 

 

 

___________________________________________    ____________________ 

Signature          Date 

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 28 of 41



Section 3 Utilization 

Tracker: Business 

Labor Hours

U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development                     

Office of Field Policy and 

Management 

OMB 2501-0040                                                                     

Expiration 04-30-2025           HUD 

Form 4737

EXAMPLE

Business Name

Non-Section 3 

Business

Section 3 

Business (must 

be verified by 

recipient/subre

cipient before 

contract is 

executed)

Total number of 

Section 3 worker 

or Section 3 

business labor 

hours worked  

Total targeted 

Section 3 worker 

labor hours. (Of 

the total Section 3 

worker labor hours 

reported list total 

labor hours from 

Targeted Section 3 

workers)

Total number of 

labor hours 

worked from non-

Section 3 and 

Section 3 

workers/Section 3 

businesses

Section 3 Benchmark non-Section 3 

businesses calculate column E 

divided by column G

A. Construction (HCD programs) or 

Capital Expenses (PHAs)                                             

(Enter labor hours for all construction 

contracts or subcontracts in the project. 

Note Section 3 requirements do not apply 

to material supply contracts.)

All Section 3 

businesses report 

total in column E

 All Section 3 business shall record 

100% of total labor hours

Optimus General Contractor x 50 25 500 10.0%

123 Excavation x 19 40 47.5%

XYZ Concrete x 120 20 120 100.0%

76 Framers x 80 80 100.0%

B. Construction subtotal (Add all amounts 

in column E to display a subtotal for 

column E; Add all amounts in column G 

to display subtotal of all labor hours in 

column G) 269 740 36.4%

C. Professional Services/Recipients          

Professional Service/recipients Section 3 

worker labor hours are only added to the 

total in column E   (Optional reporting, 

but is encouraged if it is Section 3 

Business or Section 3 worker)

Vision Land Surveying x 10 100.0%

1+2 Engineering x

Accrued Accountants x 20 100.0%

City of Entitlement CDBG x

Helpful NGO Subrecipients LLC. x 10 100.0%

D. Professional Services/Recipient 

Subtotal (Add all professional 

service/recipient hours reported in column 

E to display a subtotal for column E. This 

subtotal amount is added to the 

cumulative hours total in column E) 40

E. Cumulative Project Labor Hours 309 740 41.8%

F. Benechmark met. 

FORM A:    Business Labor Hours Tracking                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

Tracking of labor hours occurs throughout the project and is reported no later than the conclusion of the work for the identified business. This form is completed in conjunction with Form 

B for Section 3 Workers and Section 3 Targeted Workers labor hours.  An alternative to this use of this form can be from a business or employer's good faith assessment of the labor hours of 

a full-time or part-time employee informed by the employer's existing salary or time and attendance based payroll systems, unless the project or activity is otherwise subject to requirements 

specifying time and attendance reporting.

Public reporting for this collection of information is estimated to average 5 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering, and 

maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. 

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended by the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992 (Section 3), and 12 U.S.C. § 1701u ensure that 

employment and other economic opportunities generated by Federal financial assistance for housing and community development programs are, to the greatest extent feasible, directed 

toward low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who receive government assistance for housing. The regulations are found at 24 CFR Part 75. This collection of information is 

required to ensure that Section 3 workers and Section 3 Business concerns participating in Housing and Community Development Projects and Public Housing Assistance Projects with 

HUD funding are documenting Section 3 labor hours to meet the requirements of Section 3 found in 24 CFR part 75. The information will be used by the Department to monitor program 

recipient’s compliance with Section 3, to assess the results of the Department's efforts to meet the statutory objectives of Section 3, to prepare reports to Congress, and by recipients as a self-

monitoring tool.

Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions to reduce this burden, to Anna P. Guido, Reports Management 

Officer, QDAM, Department of Housing and Urban Development, 451 7th Street, SW, Room 4176, Washington, DC 20410-5000.  When providing comments, please refer to OMB 

Approval No. 2501-0040.  HUD may not conduct and sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless the collection displays a valid control number. 

No assurances of confidentiality are provided for this information collection. 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 29 of 41



Section 3 

Utilization 

Tracker: Section 3 

Labor Hours 

U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development                     

Office of Field Policy and 

Management 

OMB 2501-0040                                             

Expiration 04-30-2025                                          HUD 

Form 4737A

Name of Business contracted on 

(Name of Project)

Identification of Section 3 

Worker

Identification of 

Targeted Section 3 

Worker

Date of hire or first 

reporting period 

Total labor hours worked on a project per Section 3 

Worker  (Tracking of hours can be completed in a 

separate wage reporting system)

EXAMPLE

List or identify all Section 3 

Workers for each contracted 

business. Documentation of a 

Section 3 Worker is completed 

outside of this form. 

Indicate, by marking with 

an "X" if the worker has 

been identified as a 

Targeted Section 3 

Worker. Documentation 

of a Targeted Section 3 

Worker is completed 

outside of this form. 

Enter either the date of 

hire or the date of the first 

reporting period after hire 

for each worker.

Enter number of hours worked by the individual employee 

over the duration of project. 

Business Name Section 3 Worker Name 

Optimus General Contractor

Employee name 1 x 5/16/2021 10

Employee name 2

Employee name 3

123 Excavation

Employee name 4

XYZ Concrete

Employee name 5 x

76 Framers

Employee name 6

Employee name 7 x

AB Drywall

Cumulative Project Labor Hours

Public reporting for this collection of information is estimated to average 5 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering, and maintaining the data needed, and completing and 

reviewing the collection of information. 

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended by the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992 (Section 3), and 12 U.S.C. § 1701u ensure that employment and other economic opportunities 

generated by Federal financial assistance for housing and community development programs are, to the greatest extent feasible, directed toward low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who receive government assistance for 

housing. The regulations are found at 24 CFR Part 75. This collection of information is required to ensure that Section 3 workers and Section 3 Business concerns participating in Housing and Community Development Projects and Public 

Housing Assistance Projects with HUD funding are documenting Section 3 labor hours to meet the requirements of Section 3 found in 24 CFR part 75. The information will be used by the Department to monitor program recipient’s 

compliance with Section 3, to assess the results of the Department's efforts to meet the statutory objectives of Section 3, to prepare reports to Congress, and by recipients as a self-monitoring tool.

Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions to reduce this burden, to Anna P. Guido, Reports Management Officer, QDAM, Department of Housing and Urban 

Development, 451 7th Street, SW, Room 4176, Washington, DC 20410-5000.  When providing comments, please refer to OMB Approval No. 2501-0040.  HUD may not conduct and sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a 

collection of information unless the collection displays a valid control number. No assurances of confidentiality are provided for this information collection. 

FORM B:    Section 3 Labor Hours Tracking                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

(Reporting for each Section 3 worker can occur throughout the project and as directed by the HUD recipient for the identified business(es). An alternative to this use of this 

form can be from a business or employer's good faith assessment of the labor hours of a full-time or part-time employee informed by the employer's existing salary or time and 

attendance based payroll systems, unless the project or activity is otherwise subject to requirements specifying time and attendance reporting.

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 30 of 41



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

      Aturidat Ginima Van Rinueban Siudat Guahan 

                 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                 RESOLUTION NO. FY2024-009 

 

Moved by:    Seconded by:    

  

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AND ENFORCE THE UPDATED SECTION 3 POLICY 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority   

("GHURA") is authorized under 12 Guam Code Annotated §5104(e) to establish 
policies for the effective governance, administration, and operational management 
of the Authority; 

 
           WHEREAS, GHURA acknowledges the critical importance of ensuring that economic opportunities 

generated by HUD-funded projects are made accessible to low-income individuals and 
businesses within the community, in alignment with the objectives of the Section 3 
Policy; 

 
WHEREAS,      Section 3 is specifically designed to help residents of public housing and low-income 

people living in the areas where HUD funds are spent. It targets those who are most 
likely to need these job opportunities and economic boosts. The initiative requires 
that businesses and contractors working on HUD-funded projects make a real effort 
to hire local low-income individuals and to subcontract to businesses that are owned 
by low-income individuals, or employ them in significant numbers. 

  
 
WHEREAS,     the main goals of the Section 3 initiative are to provide jobs, training, and contracting 

opportunities to low-income individuals and businesses in the communities where 
HUD money is being spent. In this way, the investments not only improve the physical 
community through construction and revitalization projects, but also helps the people 
living in those communities by offering them direct economic opportunities. 

 
WHEREAS,      Section 3 helps to ensure that the investment of federal funds into housing and urban 

development also includes investing in the people who live in those communities, 
giving them a chance to work on projects in their area, improve their skills, and support 
their local economy. 

 
WHEREAS, the updated Section 3 Policy dated January 26, 2024, outlines comprehensive 

measures to enhance employment, training, and contracting opportunities for low-
income residents and Section 3 businesses in projects receiving HUD funding; 

 
WHEREAS, GHURA recognizes the need to align its policies with federal regulations, ensuring 

compliance with HUD requirements and fostering economic growth within its 
communities; now, therefore, be it 

 
 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 31 of 41



 RESOLVED,   that the GHURA Board of Commissioners hereby rescinds any previous Section 3 
policies and fully adopts the updated Section 3 Policy as presented on January 26, 

2024; and be it further 
 

 RESOLVED,     that GHURA shall enforce the Section 3 Policy rigorously, ensuring that all HUD-
funded projects promote local economic development by prioritizing the hiring and 
contracting of eligible low-income individuals and Section 3 businesses; and be it 

further 
 
 RESOLVED,     that GHURA commits to monitoring, reporting, and evaluating the effectiveness of the 

Section 3 Policy implementation, ensuring transparency, accountability, and 
continuous improvement in meeting the policy's objectives; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, that the Executive Director of GHURA is tasked with the operationalization of the 

Section 3 Policy, including the development of Standard Operating Procedures, 

training programs, and compliance monitoring mechanisms; and that it be further 

 
RESOLVED, The Section 3 Policy, as adopted, shall be effective immediately and remain in force 

until further revised or repealed by the Board of Commissioners. 

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM - FEBRUARY 13, 2024 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

 
                (S E A L) I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 

correct copy of the Resolution duly adopted by the 
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board 
of Commissioners on February 13, 2024. 

 
 

        
         ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 
         Board Secretary / Executive Director 

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 32 of 41



R
es

id
en

t 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

an
d

 
Se

lf-
Su

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 (

R
O

SS
) 

Pr
o

gr
am

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 A
N

D
 

S
TA

T
U

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T

JU
LY

 2
0

2
3

 –
JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 2

0
2

4

(S
IX

 M
O

N
T

H
 R

E
P

O
R

T
)

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 33 of 41



W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
R

O
SS

 P
ro

gr
am

?

Fo
r 

el
d

er
ly

 (
ag

e 
6

2
+)

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

n
d

 
p

er
so

n
s 

w
it

h
 d

is
ab

ili
ti

es
 r

es
id

in
g 

in
 

G
H

U
R

A
’s

 P
u

b
lic

 H
o

u
si

n
g,

 t
h

e 
R

O
SS

 
P

ro
gr

am
 a

im
s 

to
:

◦
En

h
an

ce
 q

u
al

it
y 

o
f 

lif
e 

b
y 

co
n

n
ec

ti
n

g 
re

si
d

en
ts

 t
o

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s
◦

En
ab

le
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

 t
o

 a
ge

/r
em

ai
n

 in
 

p
la

ce
◦

A
vo

id
 m

o
re

 c
o

st
ly

 f
o

rm
s 

o
f 

ca
re

, s
u

ch
 a

s 
n

u
rs

in
g 

h
o

m
es

 o
r 

o
th

er
 in

st
it

u
ti

o
n

al
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 34 of 41



R
O

S
S

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

L
o
g

J
u
ly

 2
0
2
3
 –

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
2
4

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

A
M

P
1

A
M

P
2

A
M

P
3

A
M

P
4

# Of Residents

A
d

vo
ca

cy
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
B

en
ef

it
s/

En
ti

tl
em

en
ts

/I
n

su
ra

n
ce

C
as

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
C

o
n

fl
ic

t 
R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

/E
m

p
lo

ym
en

t

G
en

er
al

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

/R
ef

er
ra

l
H

ea
lt

h
C

ar
e

/S
er

vi
ce

s
H

o
m

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

H
o

m
eM

ak
er

Le
ga

l A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

M
ea

ls

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h
 S

er
vi

ce
s

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

O
u

tr
ea

ch

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

R
O

S
S

-S
C

 s
e

rv
e

d
 a

 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
1

3
0

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

is
 p

e
ri

o
d

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 35 of 41



In
te

rg
en

er
at

io
n

al
 G

if
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

H
an

d
 

2
0

2
3

•G
o

al
: T

o
 e

n
co

u
ra

ge
 in

te
ra

ct
io

n
 a

m
o

n
g 

al
l a

ge
s 

d
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
h

o
lid

ay
s,

 R
O

SS
 p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

tn
e

r 
w

it
h

 s
ev

er
al

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 c

lo
se

 b
y 

p
u

b
lic

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

ar
ea

s.
 T

h
e 

in
te

n
t 

is
 t

o
 in

cr
ea

se
 s

el
f-

es
te

em
 a

n
d

 li
fe

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n
 w

h
ile

 
d

e
cr

ea
si

n
g 

fe
e

lin
gs

 o
f 

lo
n

el
in

e
ss

 a
n

d
 is

o
la

ti
o

n
 a

m
o

n
g 

th
e 

el
d

er
ly

. I
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

, t
h

e 
h

o
p

e 
is

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

yo
u

th
 a

ls
o

 b
e

n
ef

it
 

as
 t

h
ey

 g
ai

n
 a

 s
en

se
 o

f 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
at

h
y 

to
w

ar
d

s 
o

th
er

s,
 e

sp
e

ci
al

ly
 o

u
r 

m
o

st
 v

u
ln

er
ab

le
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

s.
 

•O
b

je
ct

iv
e:

 R
O

SS
 p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

tn
e

r 
w

it
h

 s
ev

er
al

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

 s
ch

o
o

ls
. D

et
er

m
in

e 
ar

t 
p

ro
je

ct
 f

o
r 

st
u

d
e

n
ts

 
to

 g
if

t 
to

 r
es

id
en

ts
, c

o
m

p
ile

 li
st

 o
f 

el
d

er
ly

 r
es

id
en

ts
, a

n
d

 
co

o
rd

in
at

e 
d

e
liv

er
ie

s 
an

d
 g

re
et

in
g 

ca
rd

s.

•O
u

tc
o

m
e:

 1
0

3
 E

ld
e

rl
y 

P
u

b
lic

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 (
8

5
 f

ro
m

 
El

d
e

rl
y 

Si
te

s;
 1

8
 A

M
P

1
&

2
) 

re
ce

iv
ed

 h
o

m
e

m
ad

e 
ca

rd
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

gi
ft

s 
fr

o
m

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

sc
h

o
o

l c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 36 of 41



In
te

rg
en

er
at

io
n

al
 G

ift
 o

f 
th

e 
H

an
d

 (
20

23
)

G
if

ts
 a

n
d

 D
o

n
at

io
n

s 
w

er
e 

gi
ve

n
 b

y 
M

.U
. L

u
ja

n
 E

le
m

en
ta

ry
 s

tu
d

en
ts

 a
n

d
 T

am
u

n
in

g 
El

em
en

ta
ry

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 37 of 41



G
iv

in
g 

to
 t

h
o

se
 in

 n
ee

d

Ti
ya

n
 H

ig
h

 S
ch

o
o

l
•

D
o

n
at

ed
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

 
go

o
d

s 
fo

r 
th

o
se

 r
es

id
en

ts
 in

 n
ee

d
•

A
d

u
lt

 D
ia

p
er

s
•

To
w

el
s

•
D

et
er

ge
n

t
•

B
ab

y 
W

ip
es

•
To

o
th

p
as

te
 &

To
o

th
b

ru
sh

•
So

ap
 /

 S
h

am
p

o
o

•
Th

u
s 

fa
r,

 R
O

SS
 w

as
 a

b
le

 t
o

 g
iv

e 
o

u
t 

n
ee

d
ed

 it
em

s 
to

 1
8

 r
es

id
en

ts
 

•
2

 R
es

id
en

ts
 h

ad
 r

ec
en

tl
y 

m
o

ve
d

 in
 f

ro
m

 b
ei

n
g 

h
o

m
el

es
s.

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 38 of 41



A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Ta

sk
s

G
ra

n
ts

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

◦
FY

2
0

2
3

◦
R

ep
o

rt
in

g

◦
Su

b
m

it
te

d
 F

Y2
0

1
9

 Y
ea

r 
4

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 (

O
ct

 2
0

2
3

)

◦
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 R
en

ew
al

◦
Su

b
m

it
te

d
 F

Y2
0

2
3

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

R
en

ew
al

 (
D

ec
 

2
0

2
3

)

Tr
ai

n
in

g
◦

A
m

e
ri

ca
n

 A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
 o

f 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

o
o

rd
in

at
o

rs

◦
G

u
am

 B
eh

av
io

ra
l H

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
el

ln
e

ss
 C

en
te

r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

O
u

tr
ea

ch
es

◦
G

u
am

 B
eh

av
io

ra
l H

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
el

ln
es

s 
C

en
te

r 

(G
B

H
W

C
)

◦
H

ea
lt

h
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

o
f 

th
e 

Pa
ci

fi
c 

(H
SP

)

◦
U

n
iv

er
si

ty
 o

f 
G

u
am

: G
er

ia
tr

ic
s 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e 

En
h

an
ce

m
en

t 
P

ro
gr

am
 (

G
W

EP
)

◦
D

P
H

SS
: C

o
n

fe
re

n
ce

 o
f 

A
gi

n
g

◦
G

u
am

 L
eg

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 D
is

A
B

IL
IT

Y
at

 W
o

rk

◦
D

o
o

r-
to

-D
o

o
r 

V
is

it
s 

at
 A

M
P

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

Si
te

s
◦

FS
S 

al
so

 a
cc

o
m

p
an

ie
d

 v
is

it
s 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
p

ro
gr

am
 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 39 of 41



To
 b

e 
C

o
nt

in
u

ed
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Ta
sk

s
◦

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

re
si

d
en

ts
 f

o
r 

th
ei

r 
n

e
ed

s,
 g

o
al

s,
 

in
te

re
st

s/
h

o
b

b
ie

s 

◦
C

o
n

d
u

ct
 N

e
ed

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
ac

ro
ss

 t
h

e 
A

M
Ps

◦
Su

b
m

it
 F

in
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 (
0

8
/2

9
/2

0
2

4
)

O
u

tr
ea

ch
e

s
◦

Lo
ca

l E
ve

n
ts

◦
V

is
it

 A
M

Ps
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e 
d

o
o

r-
to

-d
o

o
r 

vi
si

ts

◦
W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 A

M
Ps

 w
it

h
 c

o
n

ce
rn

s 
w

it
h

 r
es

id
en

ts

Tr
ai

n
in

gs
◦

Lo
ca

l t
ra

in
in

gs

◦
A

m
er

ic
an

 A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
 o

f 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

o
o

rd
in

at
o

rs
 

(A
A

SC
) 

W
eb

in
ar

s

Ev
en

ts
◦

U
n

iv
er

si
ty

 o
f 

G
u

am
: G

er
ia

tr
ic

s 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e 
En

h
an

ce
m

en
t 

P
ro

gr
am

 (
G

W
EP

)

◦
Sa

fe
 E

xe
rc

is
e 

an
d

 S
tr

et
ch

in
g 

D
em

o
n

st
ra

ti
o

n
s

◦
El

d
er

 J
u

st
ic

e
 C

e
n

te
r

◦
M

o
re

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

 le
ga

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
av

ai
la

b
le

 

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 40 of 41



Th
an

k 
yo

u
!

 
Board Meeting of February 13, 2023 

 
PAGE 41 of 41


	ROSS Board Meeting.pdf
	Slide 1: Resident Opportunity and Self-Sufficiency (ROSS) Program
	Slide 2: What is the ROSS Program?
	Slide 3: ROSS Service Log July 2023 – January 2024
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: Intergenerational Gift of the Hand (2023)
	Slide 6: Giving to those in need
	Slide 7: Administrative Tasks
	Slide 8: To be Continued
	Slide 9: Thank you!




